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Report and Firnnciol Statemcntsfor The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

l. Acronyms & Glossary of Terms

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility

SI.IA Occupational Health & Safety Act

Public Financial Management Act

SUP Medical Superintendent

uciary Management Key managurcnt personnel who have financial responsibility in the

entrty.

Nation Hospital Insurance Funds

FS

Hospital Managernent Team

Intensive Care Unit

Ear Nose and Throt

Average Length ofStay

Fee service

Ministry of Health
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COUNTY HOSPITAL( COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF BUNGOMA)
rt and Financial Statenurilsfor The Yesr Eruled 3Ah June 2023

Entity Information and Management

Background information

e Hospital is a level (4) hospital established under gazette notice number 786 of February,
th the following mandates
To receive patients on referral from olher hospital and community within and outside
Bungoma county for health care.
To provide facilities for medical education for Webuye medical training college and othcr
co-operation health institution.
To provide tacilities for education and training in Clinical Medicine, Nursing and other
health allied institutions
spital is domiciled in Bungoma County under the Health Department and it has a bed
of 226, with six wards, 2 operating theatres and it offer inpatient and outpatient service. It

uality health cate to patient t'rorn Kakamega, Trans-Nzoia, Busia and sub-counties wrthin
Counfy. It offers services general surgery, orthopaedic surgery, burns management, Ncw
ces, oncology, palliative care, maternigr services among others.

nagem ent
of Management govems the hospital as their responsibility includes:
et and oversees the overall strategy and approve significant policies ofthe hospital

nes hospital mission, vision, purtr)s€ and core values
e the hospital structure.

ve the annual budget ofthe hospital
nitor the hospital performance and ensure sustainability

P

E
E

ects the assets of the hospital
effective communication with stakeholders

ure availability ofadequate resources tbr the achievement ofthe hospital objectives
ce the corporate image of the hospital

Wcb
2020

a

b)

c)

1'he
capacr
offers
B
bonr

lloard
ABo

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

0
s)
h)
i)

(b) rincipal Activities

The pri
healthca
all.
Vision: be an efficient and cost-etTective medical institution
Mission: o Promote and participate in the provision ofintegrated and high-quality curative and
rehabil ve servrces
GOAL: ining equitable, affordable, accessible and quality healthcare services to all

ote Objectives:y' Prorrision ofhealth services
Ensure patient sati sfaction
Technical health assistance to local communities
Teaching and research services

ple activity/mission/mandate of Webuye hospital is to offer an efficient and quality
services that accessible, equitable, affordable, productive and globally competitive tbr

I lt



WEBUYE COUNTY HOSPITAL( COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF BUNGoturA)
Annual Report and Firtarrciol Stotenrcntsfor The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

(c)

Corc Values
. Professionalism
. Integrity
. Ethics
. Transparency and accountabilityr Partnership and collaborotion

Key Management

The Hospital's management is under the following key organs
- County department of health
- Board of Management
- Medical Superintendent
- Hospital Management Team (HM?

(d) Fiduciary Management

The key management personnel who hetd offrce during the financial year ended 30h June 2023 and
who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

Tonny kibet chongwony

(e) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

- Infeetion Prevettion Committee - The committe€ that ensures that pafients and health care workers
are protected from avoidable infection.

' Quality Improvement Committee - A committee that ensures better performance and paticnt
outcomes include safe, effective, patient-centred. timely, efficient and equitable palient care

- Human Resource Advisory Management Committee - To discuss concerns which are within the
committee's jurisdiction wilh respect to formal grievances and resolve the grievances with the
administrative officials and reach a negotiated settlernent and trainings.

- Medlciue and Therapeutic Committee - A committee that oversees policies and procedures related to
medicines and other health products, together rvith any drug reactions.

I Medical Superintendent Dr. Simon Kisaka
Head of Administration Paul Sikulu7

J Nursing otlicer in charge Catherine Asava

Accountant

_5 supply chain oflicer Benson Wabwile

rv

Desigoation NameNo.
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WEBA COUNTY HOSPITAL( COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF BUNGOMA)
Annual and Finoncial Stolenrcnts lor The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

J e Board of Management

Dr. Collins Tabu
Masters in Medicine
&Surgery

I
Mrs Metrine Arabu

Diploma in Education

Mr Nicodernus Munjaru

Masters in Medicine and Surgery.
He is the independent chainnan of the Board

Dploma in Education.
She is tlre C.hairperson of the Quality-of-Care
Committeo
@oad Mernber)

He is the chailperson of the Audit Committec (Board
lr,lember

I
/

Dr. Sirnon Kisaka
Masters in Family Medicine

Masters in Medicine and Surgery (Family Medicine)
He is the secretary of the Hospital Boald, executive
member of the Board and also the CEO of the
Hospital

Dr. Jane Khasoa
He is the member of the board and finance cornrnittee
chair
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wEBayE coaNTy HosprTAL( COUNTy GOVERNMENT OF BaNGOMA)
,4nnual Report antl Finuncial Statentents for The Year Ended 3(/' June 2023

- Emergency Response Committee - A committee that will analyse any emergency initiatives and
evaluale effectiveness of emergency preparedness and response

' Sexual and Gender Based Violence Committee - the oommittee that addresses problems of sexual
and gender-based violence within the community. Such cases are attended to at no cost in the hospital.

Webuye Counfy Hospital
P.O. Box 25 - 50205
Webuye Town
WEBUYE, KENYA

(s) Entity Contacts

Tel ephone : + 2 5 47 323 3 3 68U +25 47 59 9 32327
E-mail : rve-huvcdislrictho spital@vahoo.corn

(h)

Website; www.go.ke

Entity Bankers

Kenya Commercial Bank

(i) Independent Auditors

Office of Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, Institute Way
P.O. Box 30084
GPO 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

(j) Principal Legal Adviser

County Attomey
County Government of Bungoma
P.O. Box 437
Bungoma, Kenya

(k) County Attorney

P.o. Box.427
Bungoma, Kenya

(0 Entity Headquarters
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WEBUYE COUNTY HOS?TTAL( COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF BUNGOMA)
Annual Report and Financial Statenwntsfor The Year Ended 30h June 2023

7. Statement of Performance Against Predetermired Objectives

Webuye County Hospital has 6 strategic pillars/ themes/issues and objectives within the ourrent Skategic

Plan tbr the FY2022- FY2023. These strategic pillarv themev issues are as follows:

Pillar 1: Eliminate communicable condition

Pillar 2: Health Service delivery

Pillsr 3: Health information

Pillar 4: Health Financial

Pillar 5: Health product and Technology

Pillar 6: Leadership and governance

Webuye county hospital develops its annual work plans based on the above 6 pillarVThemes/Issues.

Assesgment of the Board's performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The

Webuye hospital achieved its performarrce targets set for the FY 202212023 period for its 6 strategic

pillars, as indicated in the diagram below:

Eliminate

communicable

condition

To prevention

communicable

condition

No ofpatient screened

all in-patient and out-

patient.

Routine screening Elimination of

mother to child

transmi ssion

Screening of

(WRA) for

cervical cancer

Health service

delivery

To improve general

service availability.

Number of outpatients

visits per 1000

population.

-Renovation of

the hospital.

Quality servicc

delivery to our

clients

Health

information

Availability of all

MOH reporting tools

afld ensures registers

are in place.

County

govemment to

provide up to date

registers and

Timely planning

and budgeting of

the hospital

requirements.

xl

Stntcgic
Pillrr/Tlcre/I
r3uc3

I Activitier
I

AchievementsObjective

To access capacity for

analysis, synthesis and

validation of data.
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In the year

Financial
In order to

WEBAYE UNTY HOS?TTAL( COaNTy GOVERNMENT OF BUNGOMA)
Annaal R and Financial Statementsfor The Year Etded 3Oh June 2023

ed icrl superintendent Statement

to present the hospital annual report. The report highlights the hospital operational and
rmance as well as strategic direction.

performance
is a high volume level lV facility.it has alt speciatized services tbr level lV facility. 1'hc

that our customer receive safe, timely equitable and patient centred services
022123, the hospital attended to 216,862 patients.

tew

eet the cost ofoperation and maintenence, the hospitals rely on monthly-generated revenue,

S

largest t being cost-sharing revenue. During the ytar under review, the hospital generated 217
rnillion as pared to various years, tvhich was a positive increase
Acknowl ment
The two h d thousands ofpatients served are a living testament to the care, love and support offered
everyday outstanding commitment of our staffs
We are to our stakeholders and sponsors of kindness, compassion, support offered to webuye
County H pital

I rvillhi ght some of the activities done he period under review,
hase of a dental chair

ase of double cabin utility vehicle
C ction of store tbr tiles

g cabros in the front and mortuary parking

hased linen for the wards

uniform for staffs

ation of Amenity toilets and bathrooms

ion of laboratory at NHIF building
ation of ENT department

D ng ofborehole
sron mortuary

emorated various world health days e.g. sickle cell, cervical cancer
P ase medical equipment e.g. patient monitor, suction machines, oxygen monitor

hospital has over 30 acres ofland which still has large space ofexpansion although not yet
red title deed

shortage both technical and non-technical staff
hospital land is not fully faced

hospital also lacks major department like ICU, Renal unit, Orthopaedic unit, Mental unit and

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

P

P

Challen
a

a

a

a

scan
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wEBUyE COUNTT'HOSPITAL( COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF BUNGOilIA)
Annual Report arul Firtonciol Statements for The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

5. Chairman's Statement

It is my pleasure to present the hospital 2022/23 Annual Finance Statement. The Board of management is

proud of achievements realized by hospital this period towards world class patient centred specialized

care. I am particularly impressed by sta{Ps passionate aritude in serving clients.

During 0E penod under revieq the hospital accomplished the following; purchase a new double cabin

utility vehicle, constructed a store for files, cabros paved rvalk ways and parking lot etc.

The evaluation ol2o22/23 work plan shows that the hospial exhibited continuous improvement of
performance over the years. I'm also happy to state that this mensgement achieved most of the annual

performance targets.

Challenses

Despite the above achievemenls the hospital has the challenges which includes; stalled renal/ICIJ

building, limited bed capacity, sewer line construction, shortage of staffs and delay in paying contractunl

staffs.

ln response to this, the board remain tbcused in providing resources and partnering with the executive,

otherarms ofgovemment and partners to ensure the above challenges are addressed.

Acknowled gement

On behalf of the board, I would like to thank all the sAke holders for the support they continue to accord

this hospital without lvhich our achievement would not have been realised. As we move into the new

financial year, 1 would like to express m-v.- gratitude to Webuye hospital statlt, specialized team leaders

and the board who takes such pride in their work

Thank you

Name: Dr. Collins Tabu
sign z&(Ilq.
Chairperson
Board of lltanaeement

vul



II'EBUI'E UNTY HOS?TTAL( COaNTy GOVERNMENT OF BUNGOMA)
,.lnnuol rt und Financial Statemertsfor The Year Eruled 3Oh June 2023

8. orporate Governance Statement

The rneeti
ly a general meeting every querter and each of the sub committees also sit once per quarter
are attended by all members.

There is us

The top &gement especially the accounting offrcer should make reference to sustainable efforts, broad

trends in

practices

i)

litical and macroeconomic affecting sustainability priorities, reference to international best

ratro,

key achievements and failure

vironmental performance

The hospi provides a good working environment for both the patienLs and the workforce. The infection

preventron mmittw which is charged with the role of ensuring safe rvorking environment, there is a

clear poli on waste segregation and disposal both for drugs, non-pharms human waste and bodies. The

commrttee regularly to discuss and implement its findings

(ii) mployee welfare

The em ees iue mainly hired and posted by the county public service board. The hospital management

role is to se concern on shortages and needs. It enlages casual employees through a competitive

process puts into consideration gender ratio. The hospital management encourages and supports its

slaf)'m to train and capacity build in various courses. The t'acility observes the policy on sal'ety

and comp with occupational safety and Health act of 2007(OSHA)

Give a of the policies guiding the hiring process and whether thcy take into account the gender

they take in stakeholder engagements and how often they are improved. Explain eftbrts

made in ing skills and managing careers, appraisal and reward systems. The organisation should

also discl their policy on safety and compliance with Occupational Safety and Health Act of 2007,

(osHA.)

(iii) rket place practices-

The sation should outline its efforts to

SUB CO[11!hITTEES.
-F- inance sud committee
-Quality of {ealth care services sub-committee.
-Audit sub-&mmittee.

I'hc roles anF functions of the hospial management board are clarified in the guidelines written in the
ministry of {nedical services. Process of appointment, induction, training and conflict of interest
succession $an and govemance audit are handled at the county level.

xill



WEBUYE COUNTY HOSPITAL( COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF BUIVGOMA)
Annuol Report and Finoncial Statenpilsfor The Year Ended 3Uh June 2023

Ilealth

financing

Health product

and

Technology

-To raise sufficient

funds for the hospital

from internal and

external sources.

-To improve financial

risk protection.

-number of patients

served.

-patients

regi stered/capitated by

NHIF in the hospital.

-availability of

essential goods and

-planning for

anticipated health

needs.

-budgeting and

sourcing for

finances.

Facilitation of

essential sen,ices

in the hospital.

Physical stocks

done for the

period

To ensure availability

of essential drugs

Average availability

selected essential

medicines per month

-Timely ordering

ofdrugs

-Monthly

physical stock

taking

Leadership and

SOVemance

-To improve

accountability to

service providers in

terms of service

delivery.

-Financial management

and maintenance of

infrastructure.

-To carry out biannual

hospital invertory

status.

-To measure patients

satisfaction

-Number of HMT

meeling held

-NumberofHMC

meeting hcld

-nrmrber of financial

reporb prepared

-number of monlhly

report submitted

-availability of updated

hospital irwentory

-number of client e.xits

surveys conducted

Quarterly HMC

meetings

-Monthly HMT

meetings

-Quarterly

supportive

supervision and

revierv meefings

12 HMT

meetings

conducted

xu

servlces.

I

I

I

I

reporting tools.



II'EBU couNTY HOSPTTAL( COUNTy GOVERNMENT OF BaNGOMA)
Annual n and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Uh Junc 2023

q) Responsible competition practice.

ital management has adopted m anti-corruption crusade which involves fair

on and respects its competitors. The hospital offers quality health care services in

sn with its partners.

Webuy

6) Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations

county hospital oftbrs fair competition to all its suppliers. It practices fairness by honouring

bul a tinre there is delay in payment due to delayed Linda Mama and NHIF Funds.

c) Responsible marketing and advertisement

Asa rnment hospital and as per ethical guidelines we don't advertise health services.

d,) Product stewardship

tal observes patient rights and interest and offers patient centred care. Patient service chartersThe

are a clearly outlining services available, timelires and cost.

Corporate Social Responsibility I Community Engagementsii)
'l'he tal provides subsidized cost services to its clients to prevent cfltastrophic events, Guiding and

co ng of patents is also done and HIV/TB screening services.

The h

compe

coll

co

xrv

l/



ttEBUyE COaNTy HOS?TTAL( COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF BANGoMA)
,,lnnual Report and Firturtcial Statenunts for The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

9. Management Discussion and Analysis

Thc management should make use of tables, Sraphs, pie charts and other descnptive tools to make the
information as understandable as possible. The informition should show a trend for the last three years.
Some of the details to be inctuded under this section are;

ClinicaUoperational perform ance

Webuye County Hospital has a bed capacity of 226. ln the last financial year, patient attended to both
inpatient and outpatient totalled to 216,862.In the special clinics averagely iaw tiZ.Ztl patients, average
lengh of stay is 4 days; with bed occupancy rate of over 100% ptus u *o.tutity rate of 6/o.

OUT PATTENT ATTENDANCE

From the figure above shows the trend of patient atteadarrce fora period of 3 years

88844
78585

9m00

80(mo

7flm

60000

s0000

tffim

3(xtro

200@

1ofix)

o

63524

The Figure above Shows the Total outpatient AtGndance in the 3 years period as from the trend in
2020/2021 the number was low with 28% patient attendance due to Covid-l9 then it increased in202ll22
to 34Yo patients and2022/2023 patient aflendance incressed to 38g6r

.T

xv

_
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,YEBUYE UNTY HOSPITAL( COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF BUNGOfuIA)
,4nnual and Finatrciul Statementsfor Tlrc Yeor Ended 3Ah June 2023

las not se the wards basing on diagnosis but it's based on gender and age. ln addition deliveries
are also

Operation
The facili

gummary for three years
has two thearres that offer operation (marcrnity and main theatre) that offers Obs & Cynae

a7? 835

728 75?733 77s

478
436

a7020-2021

)2027-2022

2022-2023
168

118

surgery, o paedic surgew and general surgery which is categorised as minor, major, emergency,
cold/el as show from the figure below

994
1000

900

8fi)

700

600

500

M
300

200

100

o

955

505

+*." .o-"
."""- ..so"ss'

"tt"

xvtt
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SPECLA,L CLINIC % AT'I'T,N D.{NCE,

39
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3878

3895

4550 4309
4564

4279 r General admisslon

I maternity admission

deliveries

2420-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

From the graph above shows the general inpatient attendance in202012021 we had lowest admission of
5724 patients and the highest was in 202212023 with 7580 patients while maternity admission the lorvest

was 2020-2021 with patient turnour of 3878 and highest in2021-2022,4550 patients however the facility
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,CARA).

approved

revenue sharing fbrmula is developed by the Commission on Revenue Allocation and

Parliament in accordance with Article 217 ofthe Constitution

The main urce of financing for the Hospital is through own genenrted revenues. These are revenues

collected n the Hospital departments as per the sale of services offered that include Pharmaceuticals,

Laboratory,

ln the year

total of kshs

on-pharmaceuticals and other Services

ed 30 June 2023, the hospital had projected revenues of Kshs.232, 861,542 of rvhich a

217,000,000 were collected.atggo/o revenus collection. The county Government paid tbr the

casual for the Hospital an arnount of kshs 25nu thus revenue in kind from the county

Government

Th€ totsl ex nditure budget for the financial year was Kshs.2l7, 000,000 and total actual expendirure

amounted to hs.l99, 640,000 representing 92% budget absorption. The Webuye County Hospital

[*o*uy uti funds on, Payment of supplies on commodities and goods, payment of utilities,

ntiastruct improvement and renovations & Purchase of Medical equipment's and maintenanceI

7pn 
rn,

25 AP \ ./tlr. Kisaka Si on.

edical Supe tentlcnt Webuye Ilospital

xlx
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Averege length of stay

ALOS

6r
i

s-i 5
4-l

,j
,i

4

-+-ALOs

1

0

2020-2021 202t2A22 2022-2023

From the graph above the period ofstay per patient is overagely 4 days

death rate

5.99

5.95

+death rate

5.64

2020-2021 2027-2022 2022-2021

I"rom the above figure the average death rate is 67o

Flnancing of the Webuye County Hospitel.

Articlc 202 of the Constitution of Kenya provides that revenue raised nationally shall be shared equirably

among the National Government and tlrc County Govemments. Each County Govemmenfs equitable

share of revenue raised nationally, is determinod yearly through the County Allocation of Revenue Act

6.7
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WEBUYE UNTY HOSPTTAL( COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF BaNGOMA)
,,lnnual rt and Ftnancial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3ffh June 2023

11. Sta ent of Board of lllanagement's Responsibilities

?017 requi
give a true

f the Public Finance Management Act,2012 Bungoma County Health services Act NO.5 ol
the Board of Management to prepare financial statements in respect of that entity, which

operatrng
fair view of the state of aftirs of *re entity at the end of the financial yearlperiod and thc

ts of the Webuye level4 hospital for that 2022/2023. The Board of Management is also
sure that the entity keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable

I nancl al position of the entity. The council members are also responsible for safeguardin

Section 164

required to
accuzrcy the
Ithe assets of

rs further

c
Webuye county hospital

The Board o Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Webuye county
ital ti I statements, which give a true and fair vierv of the state of at}'airs of the Webuye county
tal for a as at the end ofthe financial year (period) ended on June 30, 2023. This responsibility

ncludes

h Board of ment accepts respomibility for the Webuye hospital level 4 financial shtements,
h have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent

ud and tes, in conformity with lntenrational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS),
in the manner uired by the PFM Act, 2012. The Board members are of the opinion that the entity's

al statem give a true and fair view of the state of entity's transactions during the financial year
June 30, 2 , and of the Webuye county hospiAl financial position as at that date. The Board

firm the completeness of the accounting records maintained for the entities, which

N
w

A

Th
on

h been relied n in the preparation of the Webuye hospilal financial statements as well as the
y ofthe sys s of intemal financial control

ha-s come the attention of the Board of management to indicate that Webuye county hospital
I remarn a go concern for at leasl the next trvelve months from the date of this statement

sl of the fi ial statements

by
statements were approved try the Board or 29'tlt SEPTEMBER 2023 and signed

ffi.* ,,

spital's fi

Na r Tabu Co Name; Dr Kisaka Simon
Accounting OfficerBoa hair

xxt
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(i) Maintafring adequate financial managemef,t arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be
efl4tive throughout the reporting period.

(ii) Maintalfing proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
fina{cial position of the entity.

(iii) designi4g, imptementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair
pres{ttation of the financial statements, and ersuring that they are free from material
rnrsstltements, whether due to error or fraud,

(iv) Safeg,,"iling the assets of the Webuye county hospital.
( v ) Selecti ngpnd apply i ng appropriate accounting policies,
(vi) Making ftcounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances

ig



wEBaYE COUNTY TIOSPTTAL( COaNTy GOVERNMENT OF BUNGOMA)
Annuol Report and Financial ,Stilenunts for The l'edr Ended 30h ,lune 2023

Borrd of Menagement
The members of the Board rvho served during the year are shorvn on (page vi). During the year no board
memberretiredl resigned and memben was appointed with effect from I"ton November 2019

Auditors

The Auditor General is respomible for the st8tutory audit of the Webuye level 4 hospital in accordance
rvith Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015 were nominated by the
Auditor General to carry out the audit of the entity for the year/period ended June 30, 2023 in accordance
to section 23 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 which empowers the Auditor General to appoint an auditor to
sudit on his behalf.

By Order of the Board

E*;
DR.SIMONKISAKA 1h 

'.,SNCRETARY OF THE BOARD

xx

l{L Report of The Board of Msnagement

The Board members submit their report together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year
ended June 30,2023, which show the state ofthe hospital's affairs.

Principal activities

The principle activity/mission/mandate of Webuye hospital is to offer an elficient and quality healthcare
services that accessible, equitable, affordable, productive and globally competitive for all.

Rercltr

The rcsults of the entity for the year ended 30tl' June are set out on page I -3 I

',1

\:
,J

i+*



WEBUYE aNTY HOS?TTAL( COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF BUNGOMA)
Artnual R and Financial Statenuntsfor The Yeur Ended 3(lh June 2023

a

frequent supervision on wasle management

continuous on job training on waste disposal

c) Emp yee welfare

fhe employ are mainly hired and posted by the county public service board. The hospital management

concem on shortages and needs. It engages oasual employees through a competitive

ess and p s into consideration gender ratio. The hospital management encourages and supports its

members train and capacity build in various courses. The facility observes the policy on safety

d compliance occupational and safety act of 2007(OSHA)

e account the policies guiding the hiring proeEss and whether they take into account the gender

ra io, rvhether take in stalieholder engagements and horv often they are improved. Explain efforts

skills and managing carears, appraisal and reward systems. The organisation should

disclose the polioy on safety and compliance with Occupational Safety and Health Act of 2007,

o HA.)

d) Markct p ce practices-

satron d outline its efforts to

e) Res onsible competition practice.

T c hospital ement has adopted an anti-corruption crusade which involves fair

tion and cts its competitors. The hospital offers quality health care services in

co oratlon wr lts partners

We

co

rls a ment lrospi and as per ethical guidelines we don't advertise health services

h) Product tewardship

le is to rai

111 ln rmprovt

Thc,

&re a

c

observes ent rights and interest and offers paIent cenffed care. Patient service charters

e clearly outl ng services available, timelines and cost

i) porate Responsibility/Com nrunity .Engagem sats

ld sickle cell day that was celebrated in this facility, where children were

, Those tbund positive were put on medication to prolong their lifespanSC

xxl

f) Respofuible Supply chain and supplier relations
I

county hospltal ofTers fair competition to all its suppliers. It practices faimess by honouring
I

but a time thfre is delay in payment due to delayed LINDA MAMA AND NHIF FUNDS.

91 nesponfiUle marketing and advertisement



wEBUvE COUNTY HOSPTTAL( COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF BUNGOtrtut)
.4nnuol Report and Financial Stotements for The Year Ended 30h June 2023

I 2. Environmental And Sustainability Reporting

e) Sustrinability strategy and profile

l. Revenue Sources
Webuye County Hospital revenue source includes:

o FFS- Facility fee service
r Linda mama program... both Inpatient and Oupatient
r NHIF ...both Inpatient and Outpatient
o AON- Insurance for teachers both lnpatient and Outpatient

2. Utilisation of Funds etc. -100%
Webuye Counry Hospital prudently uulises funds on;

. Payment of supplies on commodities and goods

. Payment of utilities
o Infrastructural improvement and renovations
o Purchase of Medical equipment's and maintenance

h) Environmental performance

(a) policies from public health and sanitation include

o Infection prevention

. Waste segregation

o Expired during disposal

. Idol asserts disposal

However from the above the follorving successes have been realised in the hospital

r adequate supply of bin liners in the facility

. proper rvaste segregation

r proper waste disposal and adherence to IPC

r functional burning chamber forsharps and infectious lyasles

In addition there har,e been also effiorts to manage biodiversity and reduce environments impact

ofthe organisations products which include:

r sensitization of staffon infection prevention across all cadres

. community sensitization on biosafety

xxl I
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Hospilal ( Burrgonra Courtty Government)

and Finoncial Statements The Year Ended 3(lh June 2023#

t3. of the Independent Auditor Ql/ebuye Courtty Hospital)
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w'EBAyE COUNTY HOST ITAL( COUNTY GOTERNMENT OF BUNGOMA)
,-lnnuol Report and Financial Stotements for The lbor Ended 30h Jane 2023

llt

lv

world hearing day was also celebrared in the tacility where the thcility did t.--
screening for ear and nose, those who were sick were put on free medication.

community outreaches where the Hospital staffs goes back to the community to

give free vaccination and immunization 1o the children, they also do guiding and

counselling and free education on maffers concerning health.

Frec screening for TB/HIV

xx.tv
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I dra your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts

R ort on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
unting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect

the financial statements

B port on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
pliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,

s idelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
cient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure that the
vernment achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the

tended purpose

C eport on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
ich considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
rations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk

anagement environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
ose charged with governance for ordedy, efficient and effective operations of the
tity

An nmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
ant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management andrel

go nance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
ye under review

Th

RT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON WEBUYE LEVEL 4 HOSPITAL FOR THE
ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023 _ COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF BUNGOMA

three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
onsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the

a
a
o

Pu lic Finance Managemenl Acl,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
th report, when read together, constitute the report of the Auditor-General

R PORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o alified Opinion

ave audited the accompanying financial statements of Webuye Level 4 Hospital -
C unty Government of Bungoma set out on pages 1 to 59, which comprise of the

R

tl'
t of the Auditor-General on Webuye Level 4 Hospitol for the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County Government

unSoma

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL

Enhunc ing .1 L L t ) u nlah iI it.r'



tstatement of financial position as at 30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and the
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in
accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35
of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and explanations, which,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Webuye Level 4 Hospital - County Government of
Bungoma as at 30 June, 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
yearthen ended, in accordance with the lnternational Public SectorAccounting Standards
(Accrual Basis) and comply with the Public Finance Managemenl AcL,2012, the County
Governments Act, 2012, the Health Act,2017 and the Bungoma County Health Services
Act,2019.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. lnaccuracies in the Financial Statements

The financial statements presented for audit were inaccurate in the following areas;

lnformation under management discussion analysis indicates that the Hospital
projected revenues of Kshs.232,861,542 and collected a total amount of
Kshs.217,000,000. However, the statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts reflects revenue budget amount of Kshs.274,419,105 and actual
revenue collection amount of Kshs.274,419,105 resulting in unexplained
variances of Kshs.41,557,563 and Kshs.57,419,105 respectively. ln addition,
management discussion analysis indicates that the Hospital had an
expenditure budget of Kshs.217,000,000 and a total actual expenditure of
Kshs.199,640,000. However, the statement of comparison of budget and
actual amounts reflects a budget amount of Kshs.249,778,324 and actual
expenditure of Kshs.237,449,174 resulting in unexplained variances of
Kshs. 32, 778,324 and Kshs. 37, 809, 1 74, respectively.

The statement of financial performance reflects comparative amount of
Kshs.94,213,411 in respect of medical service income which differs with the
previous year's financial statements amounts of Kshs.83,180,821 resulting in
unexplained variances of Kshs.1 1 ,032,590.

The statement of financial position reflects net assets and liabilities balance of
Kshs.37,967,824 which differ with the recomputed balance of Kshs.28,364,858
resulting in unreconciled variance of Kshs.9,602,966.

The actual amounts of Kshs.274,419,105 and Kshs.237,449,174 reflected in
the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts in respect of
revenue differ with the amounts of Kshs.232,039,027 and Kshs.242,556,633 in

ilt

IV

Report of the Auditor-General on llebuye Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County Government
of Bungoma
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revte of the revenue supporting schedules indicated that an amount of Kshs.16,632,814
was d ducted from rendering of service - medical service income. The statement of
financi I performance also reflects the same amount in respect of medical services
contra s gains/losses leading to understatement of reported revenue

the statement of financial performance resulting in unexplained variance of
Kshs.42,380,078 and Kshs.5,107,459 respectively.

Page 35 of the financialstatements reflects an amount of Kshs.8,912,450 which
was not analyzed or explained.

circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements could
confirmed.

upported Revenue Balances

atement of financial performance reflects an amount of Kshs.193,734,396 in
of rendering of services - medical service income which, as disclosed in Note 8

tnancta I statements, includes amounts of Kshs. 1 3,2 46,87 2 and Kshs. 5, 1 20,7 61 in
of non-pharmaceuticals and accident and emergency services, respectively.
r, the supporting ledger and schedules were not availed for verification. Further,

rcumstances, the accuracy and completeness of rendering of services - medical
income amount of Kshs.193,734,396 could not be confirmed.

upported Expenses

tement of financial performance reflects an amount of Kshs.242,556,633 in
of total expenses which, as disclosed in Notes 11 , 14, 16 and 17 to the financial
nts, is made up of clinical costs, board of management expenses, repairs and
ance and general expenses but whose supporting ledgers and schedules were
ided for review.not pro

ln the c umstances, the accuracy and completeness of expenses of Kshs.242,556,633
could n t be confirmed

4. Ano alies in the Cash and Cash Equivalents Balance

The s ment of financial position reflects cash and cash equivalents balance of
Kshs.4, 32,395 which, as disclosed in Note 19 to the financral statements, includes a

of Kshs.233,436 in respect of the Hospital's Safaricom Pay Bill account.
, the Pay Bill's statements and certificate of balance from the service provider
provided for review. Further, review of the cash book revealed that the opening

balance
Howeve
were no
balance rthe year under review was Kshs.8,864,194 which differs with the previous
year's
of Kshs

sh book's closing balance of Kshs.8,721,155 resulting in unreconciled variance
43,038.

ln the c
equivale

umstances, the accuracy, existence and completeness of cash and cash
s balance of Kshs.4,832,395 could not be confirmed

Report of t
of Bungom
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5. Unsupported Receivables Balance

The statement of financial position reflects a balance of Kshs.8,912,450 in respect of
receivables from exchange transactions as disclosed in Note 20 to the financial
statements. However, the balance has not been supported with a detailed ledger and
ageing analysis. Further, review of the National Health lnsurance Fund's financial
statements and supporting records revealed that the Fund owes the Hospital an amount
of Kshs.42,333,109. However, this amount has not been recognized in the financial
statements.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of receivable balance of
Kshs.8,912,450 could not be confirmed.

6. Unsupported lnventory Balance

The statement of financial position reflects a balance of Kshs.2,397,197 in respect of
inventories as disclosed in Note 21 to the financial statements. However, Management
did not provide signed stock take reports or board of survey report and other verified stock
sheets to support the balance.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the reported inventories balance
of Kshs.2,397,197 could not be confirmed.

7. Anomalies in the Property, Plant and Equipment Balance

The statement of financial position reflects a balance of Kshs.21 ,825,782 in respect of
property, plant and equipment as disclosed in Note 22 to lhe financial statements.
However, physical verification conducted in the month of April, 2024 revealed that the
facility had other assets which included land and buildings, specialized and non-
specialized medical equipment, furniture and fittings and ambulances of undetermined
value which had been captured in the fixed assets register but not recognized in the
financial statements. Further, the fixed assets register did not indicate the assets'
historical costs, depreciation charges, accumulated depreciation, net book values, useful
lives and disposal dates. ln addition, available information confirmed that the Hospital
occupies thirty{hree (33) acres of land and has seven (7) motor vehicles. However, the
land title deed and vehicle logbooks were not provided for review.

ln the circumstances, the completeness, accuracy and ownership of the property, plant
and equipment balance of Kshs.21 ,825,782 and motor vehicles of undetermined value
could not be confirmed.

8. Undisclosed Payables

The statement of financial position reflects a balance of Kshs.4,458,162 in respect of
trade and other payables as disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements. However,
the balance excluded Kshs.1,835,926 payable to Kenya Medical Supplies Agency
(KEMSA).

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of trade and other payables
balance of Kshs.4,458,162 could not be confirmed.

Report of the Auditor-Ceneral on Webuye Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County Government
of Bungoma
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appli ble to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe that the audit
evid ce I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified

The
lnstit
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financ
audit,

ln the

udit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
tions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Webuye Level 4 Hospital Management in
ance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities
ordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical requirements

n

ancial statements for the year ended 30 June, 2023 were submitted to the Office
uditor-General on 02 October, 2023, Nro (2) days after the statutory deadline of
tember, 2023. This is contrary to Section 149(2Xk) of the Public Finance

ed, to not later than three months after the end of each financial year, prepare a
I statements for that financial year and submit them to the Auditor-General for
ith a copy to the County Treasury.

rcumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

udit Matters

udit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of mostKey
sign nce in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
repo in the year under review

REP RT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
URCESRES

Conc usron

As uired by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
perfo ed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on LaMulness
and E ctiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else h s come to my aftention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
appli laMully and in an effective way

Basis for Conclusion

1. La Submission of Financial Statements

Mana ement Act, 2012 which requires an Accounting Officer, in respect of the entity

2. La k of Quarterly Revenue Reports

The s tement of financial performance reflects Kshs.193,734,396 in relation to the
rende g of services - medical income as disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements
Howe r, the Hospital did not provide evidence to show that the reports were prepared
and s mitted the same to the County Treasury with a copy to the Auditor-General as
per th requirement of Regulations 64. (1) of the Public Finance Management (County
Gove ments) Regulations, 2015 which requires the Accounting Officer or receiver of
revenu or collector of revenue to prepare a quarterly report not later than the 1Sth day
after end of the quarter

Report o the Auditor-General on l{ebuye Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County Government
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Review of the staff establishment revealed that, out of one hundred and thirty one (131)
staff, one hundred and twenty (120), representing 92o/o were from the same ethnic
community, hence exceeding the threshold required by Section 7(2) of the National
Cohesion and lntegration Act, 2008 which states that, no public establishment shall have
more than one third of its staff from the same ethnic community.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

4. Non-Serviced Medical Equipment

Physical verification and inspection to confirm the status of the Medical Equipment
Services as well as its operationalization revealed that the contracts between the
maintenance service providers and the Ministry of Health had lapsed leaving some
equipment not serviced and defective as indicated below;

ln the circumstances, value for money from the Medical Equipment Services could not be
confirmed.

5. Non-Compliance with the Kenya Quality Health Model Guidelines

5.1 lnadequate Staffing

Review of records provided revealed that the Hospital had deficit in staff as tabulated
below:

Report of the Auditor-General on l{ebuye Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County Government
of Bungoma

6

Equipment
No. of
Units Status

1 Functional but not serviced since 2019.
Further, the processor has not functioned
since March ,2024

C ARM 1 Faulty for over one year due to lack of spare
part (power software) for over two years

DIGITAL GENERAL X-RAY 1 Faulty since January, 2024, due to lack of
service. The room AC not working.

DIGITAL MOBILE X-RAY 1 Faulty since November, 2021
ULTRASOUND 1 Functional but not serviced for over a year

and the room was leaking and was without
AC thus the equipment tended to overheat

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

3. Non-Compliance with Laws on Ethnic Gomposition

CR



Deficit

otto

DeficiU
SurplusS/No Category

16 14 2 13
2 I 1 502 Anesthesiologists
2 1 1 503 Surgeons

4 Gynaecologists 0
1 505 Paediatrics 1

1 1 506 Radiologists 2

lnt
stip

On gregate, the Hospital had a staff deficit of fifty (50) or 8o/o of the required personnel
towa s achieving the quality health model guidelines in terms of staffing.

circumstances, Management did not comply with the health policy guidelines
u d in the Kenya Quality Health Model

The
com

udit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

abo
ly with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the

finan
gove
top

REP
AND

repo

been

ln th
ona

RT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
OVERNANCE

Con lusion

As quired by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
pro dures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effe iveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my

, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
inte al controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective

Basi for Conclusion

1.P r Management of Pharmaceuticals and Non-Pharmaceuticals ltems

of management of pharmaceutical and non-pharmaceutical commodities at theRevi
Hos al revealed that stock cards used in issuance of drugs to various departments in

the pital did not indicate the batch number and the expiry dates of the drugs. Further,
95,8 units of medicines of undetermined value were found to have expired and had not

isposed as at 30 June, 2023 (at the time of audit inspection).

ial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
n them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
vide a basis for my conclusion.

circumstances, it was not possible to establish whether the issuance of drugs was
irst Expiry First Out (FEFO) basis.

Recommended
by the Kenya
Quality Model
for Health ln-Post

1 MedicalOfficers

2 2 100
2

Reportpf the Auditor-General on llebuye Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County Government
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2. lneffective lnternal Audit and Audit Committee Function

Review of the Hospital's governance system revealed that it relied on the lnternal Audit
Unit of the County Executive and did not directly report to the audit committee of the
facility but to the audit committee of the county government. Further, although the internal
audit department carried out audits in the year under review, it did not submit any audit
report on the operations of the Hospitalto the Management. This is contrary to Regulation
167(1) of the Public Finance Management (County Governments) Regulations, 2015
which requires each County Government entity to establish an effective Audit Committee.

ln the circumstances, the Hospital could not benefit from the independent assurance over
its financial reporting and risk management processes.

3. Lack of Policy Documents

During the financial year under review, the Hospital did not have a risk management
strategy in place and therefore, had no approved processes and guidelines on how to
mitigate operational, legal and financial risks. Consequently, Management did not perform
formal risk assessments on all key financial risk areas such as cash, revenue and
expenditure. Further, it was noted that Management lacked a disaster recovery
plan/business continuity plan and therefore crucial information may never be recovered
in the event of a disaster.

ln addition, the Hospital was operating without an approved waiver policy to show proper
guidelines and procedures on waiver and therefore the effectiveness and sufficiency of
the controls could not be confirmed.

ln the circumstances, the Hospital may not achieve its desired objectives where crucial
policy documents are non-existent.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Management

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financral statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Hospital's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Hospital or to cease operations.

Report of the Auditor-General on l{ebuye Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County Covernment
of Bungoma
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Man gement is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Aud r-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act, 015

activ es, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
tn pliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
appli in an effective way

The rd of Management is responsible for overseeing the Hospital's financial reporting
pro , reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with

legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and

of Se

syste s are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to overall
gove ance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
contr environment

Audi -General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The
state

dit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
nts as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

and to ssue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
ion 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with

lna
state

relev

Article
is not

fraud
reaso
of the

ln add
perfo
financi
compli
an
and su

Furthe
compli
of inte
accord
the aud
the inte
might
which t
reduce
amount

ition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
ents described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the

29(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect

error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
bly be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
financial statements.

ion to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
ed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
I transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
nce with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in

ve way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
mit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
ce, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
al controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in

with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of

nal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in

that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may

a mat rial misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
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occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Hospital's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Hospital to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

a

a

a

a

a

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Hospital to express an opinion on the financial statements.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that are identified during the audit.

Report of the Audilor-General on llebuye Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County Government
of Bungoma

l0

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.



I als
requ
and
whe

provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
ments regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships

ther matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
applicable, related safeguards

a un

Nairo

Report of Auditor-General on l ebuye Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 202j - County Government
of Bungoma
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Report and Flnauclal Stutenunts ol The Year Endcd 3th June 2023

14. statement of Financial performanrs for The year Ended 30 June 202J
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WEBUYE COANTY HOSPIT BUNGOMA COANTY GOVERMENT
Annuol Report and Flnanclal Stoten eusfor Tlu Year Endcd 3(lh June 202J

15. Statement of Financial Position As At 30s June 2023

Dercrlption Notes 2022/2023 2021/22
KshsKshs

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 12 4,832,395 8,978,232

13 8.912,4sO 2.378.870

14 2,397.197
Total Current Assets 16.142.O42 n.357.1O2
Non<urrent assets

Pro ant, and e ul ment l5 21,825.782 7.418.240
Total Non-current furets
Total assets

21,825,752 7,41824D
37,967,824 18,775,342

Liabllities
Current llabilities
Tmde and other payables t6 4,458.162 983.854

4,458,162 983.854

Net assets

Accumulated surplus/Deficit 23.906.696
23,906.696 17.79t.488

37,967,824

Recelvables from exchange
transactions

lnventories

Total Net Assets and Liabilities

The Hospital's financial statements were appoved by the Board on
signed on its behalfby:

18,,775,342

r\r

4

) 4 and

Total Liabilities

17.791.488
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W'EBAYE COUNTY HOSPIT BUNGOMA COANTY GOVERMENT
Attttnul Report and Financlal Statementslor The Yeor Endcd 3(lh Jutu 2023

16. Statement of Changes in Net Asset for The Yeer Ended 30 June 2023

17. Accumulated
surpluVDeficit Total

At July 1,2021
1,611,955 1,61 I,955

Revaluation al ll

Suplrs/(deficit) for the year
16,179,s33 16,179,533

At June 30. 2022
17,791,489 l7,79l,4Eg

AtJuly 1,2022
17,7gl,4gE 17,791,4E8

6, I 15.208 6,115,20E
SurpluV(deficit) for the year

laUDevelo

At June 30,2023
23.906.6e6 69623 9

Chairman

Board of Management
Hea

ICPAK No:

nce

6

-USP

Capital/Development grants

Revaluation gain
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WEBUYE COANTYHOSPIT BUNGOMA COANTY GOVERMENT
Annuol Repon und Flnanctal Stotenwfislor The Year Ended 3Oh June 2023

lE. Statement of Cash Flows for The Year Ended 30 Juue 2023

-#:
Chairman

Board of Management

\

Head Financ

ICPAK No:
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H/EBU COUNTI' ilOSPIT BUNGOMA COUNTY GOI/ERMENT
,4nnaal and Financlal Statemcrusfor Tht Year Eruled 3N June 2023
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159,263.,tzt216.463,140.24I(( hdering ofser ces- Medical Service Income

and donations
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ll/eouye Cumryn Hospilal (Bangoma Coutrtlt Governncnt)
Annual Repofi snd Fiflonciol Statementsfor The Year Euled i(lh Jane 2023

19. Statement of Com son of Bud

Descrip,tion

levenue
n- kind contributions frorn the County
iovemrnent

\rblic contributions and donations

i.endering of services- Medical Service Income

Xher recei S ct

'otal income

!x nses

ledicaliClinical costs

imployee costs

i.epairs and rnaintenance

ieneral expenses

-otal 
Expenditure

iurplus for the period

)apital expenditure

and Actual Amounts for I'err Ended 30 Jun !023

Original br.rdget Adjustments Final budgct
Actual on comparaHc

besis
Performancc

difference
"/" of

utilisation
il b c-(a+b) d s=1c-d) f=dlcY"

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

33,985,122
33,985,122

33,985,122 100

7,572,441
7.572.44r

1,572,441 r00

232,86r,s42
232,861,542

232,861,542

274,119_,195
274,419,105

274,419,105 100

138,038,4r 6 t2,329,1s0
150,367,566

I38,038,416 ( 1 2,32e, 150) 92

32,886,296
32,886,296

32,886.296 100

21,999,119 21,999,|9 (l )

44.525,343.00

27,999,L19.00

44,szs,343
44,525,343 100

237,449,171
219,77&324

237,.149,174

36,969,931 12329,t50
24,,640,191

36,969,931

IO

t00

100



lltebuye Cwnry* Hospilal (Bungoma Couttty Goverumcnt)
Anrual Report md Financial Slotemrnts far The Year Endtd 3F June 2023

irman

rd of Management

L G*E-
ii

Head of Finance Medical Superintendent
ICPAK No:

EXFENDITURE: Our erpcndihrrc surparscd our budget rllocation bcceusa of increase of inflation nrtc thst tfre market i*
expcrfuncing hencc tte increaslng general expenses and repair costs

II

#:

REVENUE: lVe rtccived NHIF rtimbursemert llmost et the end of financlal yerr. Most of our revenue was also
heme lncrease in our lncome.

in kind

25APR
(_:

eutrsa.24.,
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Wehuj,g County Hospitol (Bungoma Coutrty Governncnt)
Annuol Report und Fiwncial Stotettents for The Yesr Ended 3fh June 202J

20. Notes to the tr'inancial Stetemenb
1. General Information

Webuye Hospital is a level (4) hospital establi$ed under gazette notice number 786 of Febnrary, 2020 with the following mandates: The
Hospital is domiciled in Bungoma County under the Health Deparonent and it has a bed capacity of 226, with six wards, 2 operarng
theatres and it offer inpatient and outpatient service and have the following specialist services from Kakamega, Trans-Nzoia, Busia and
sub-counties within Bungoma Countl'. It offers services general surgery, orthopaedic surgery, bums management, New bom services,
oncology, pallietive care, matemity services among others.

2. Strtement Of Compliance And Basis Of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except fin the measurernent at re-yalued amounts of certain jtems of
property, plant, and equipment' marketable securities and financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estirnated recoverable
atnounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their prffent value. The preparation of financial statements in contbrmig with
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (lPSAs) allows the use of estimates and assumptions, h also requires management to
exercise judganent in the process of applying lhe entity's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree ofjudgmenr or
complexity, or where assumptiots and estimates are sigrificant to the financial statements-The financial statements have been prepared and
presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the fllnctional and reporting crurency of the enity-.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, and and International public Seclor Accounting Standards
(IPSAS)' The accounting policies adopted have been consistfltly applied to all the years presented.

3. Adoption of Neru and Rcvis€d Standards

IPSASB deferred fre applicaion date of standards from I't January 2022 wtingto Covid 19. This was done to provide entities with time to
effectively apply the standards. The deferral was s€t for ls January 2023.

I3
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Vebuye County Hospiul (Bungomo Coanty Govenntnt)
Anruuil Report und Firwncial Sutencabfor The Yur Ended 3Oh June 2023

Notes to tlte Financiul Staterrvnts (Continuetl)

i. New and amended standards rnd interpretalions in issue but not yet eflective in the year ended 30 June 2023.

Applicable: I't January 2023:

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establistr principles forthe financial reporting of financial ass€ts and liabilities that

will present relevant and useful informrtion to users of financial staternents for their ass€ssment of the amounts,

timing and uncertainty of an Entity's future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statfinents with more uefirl information than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss rnodel that is applicable to all financial insrrrnents

subject to irnpainnent testing; and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the hedging arrangements in scope of tlre

guidalrce. The model develops a strong link between an Entity's risk managetnent strategies and the

accortr[ing treafrneil for instrurnerfis held as part ofthe risk managonent strategy.

IPSAS 4l: Financial

Instruments

I rtIPSAS 42: Social

l5

. Applying a single classification ard measurement model for financial ass€ts that cousiders the characteristics

ofthe asset's cash flows and the ot{ective for rvhich the asset is held;

Applicable: January 2023



l?ebq,e County Hospital (Bungoma County Governncnt)
Annuut Report und Finoncial Stutenents for The Year Ended 3Uh June 2023

Benefits e\ance, faithful representativeness and comparability of the

information that a reporting Entity provides in its financial statement$ about social benefits. The informatjon provided

should help users ofthe financial statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Entity;

(b) The key features ofthe operation ofthose social benefit schemes; and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's financial performance, financial position and castr

flows

Tle objective of this Standard is to improve rhe rel

Amendments to Other

IPSAS resulting from

IPSAS 4l, Financial

Instruments

a) Amendmurts to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the componenrs of bonowing costs which were

inadvertently ornitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on hedging and credit risk which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

c) Amendmants to IPSAS 30, to trpdate the guidance for accounting for financial guaftrnte€ contracts which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidalce on classifring financial instnrments on iniual adoption of accrual

basis IPSAS which were inadvertently omitted rvhen IpSAS.ll was issued.

Applicable: lst January 2023:

Applicabk I't Junua4, 2Q2j

16
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ll'ebqe Countl, Hospital (Bungomo County Governnenl)
Annual Reporl ond Financiol Statenpnls lor The Ymr Euded 3Oh June 2023

IPSAS t IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information oboul llc General Gwernment Sectot

Amendments to refer to the latest System of National Accounts (SNA 2008).

t IPSAS 39: Employee Benefits

Now deletes the term composite social security benefits as it is no longa defined in IPSAS.

e IPSAS 29: Financial instrumenls: Recognition and Measurcment

Standard no longer included in the 2021 IPSAS handbook as i( is now superseded by IPSAS 4l which is applicable

from t"t Juruary 2023.

IPSAS 43 Applicoble In January 2025

The standard sets out the principles for tle recognition, measurernenl, presentation, and disclosure of leases. The

objectivo is to ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant infcrmation in a manner that faithfully represents those

traruactions. This information gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess tlre effect that leases have on the

financial position. financial performance and cash flows of an Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognisc, me lure and present information on riglrt of use assets and lease

liabilities.

IPSAS 44: Non-

Current Assets Held for

Sale and Discontinued

Operations

Applicoble I't January 2025

The Standrd requires,

Assets that meet tlre criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair

value less costs to sell and the depreciation od such assets to cease and:

Assets that m€et the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be presented separately in the statement of financial

position and the resuls of discontinued operations to be prernted sepantely in the statement of fin;ancial

perfonnance.

17



ll'ehuye Counly Hospilal (Bungomn County Governncnt)
Annuul Repon and Filnncial Suten*nlsfor The l'ear Endcd 3Oh June 2023

Early adoption of standards

The entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards intheyew 202212023

1. Summary Of Siglificant Accounting Policies

a- Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-erchange transactions

Trangfers from other Government entities

Revenues from non*xchange transactions with other government entities are measured at fair value and recogrized on obtaining control of the

asset (casr, goodt, seu*iccs, and properg) if the transfer is free from conditjons and it is probable that the economic benefits or s€nric€

potential related to the asset will flow to the entity ard can be measured reliably.

Revenue from erchange transrctions
Rendcring of scrvices

The entity recqgnizes revenue from rendering of services by refererrce to the stage ofcompletion when the outcqne ofthe transaction can be

estimated reliably.

The stage of completion ls measured by reference to labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated labour hourc. Where the

contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue ls recognized only to the extent that the expenses incurred are recoverable.

Sale ofgoods

Revenue from the sale ofgoods is recogrized when the sigrrificant rislcs and rewards ofownership have been transferred to ttrc buyer, usually on

delivery

I8
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W'e h ny e C o u n ly H ospit a t ( B a n go ma C o a ng, G w e rn nv nt)
Annwl Report orul Frnancial Stutenuntfor The Yeff Ended 3Oh June 2023

of the goods and when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probabte that the economic benefits or service poterrtial

associated with the transaction will flow to ttn entity.

Intercst income

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effedive yield discounts estimated furure cash receipts flrrough the expected life

of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amotutt. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine interest incorne

for each period.

Dividends

Dvidends or similar distributions must be recogized when fte shareholder's or the entity's right to receive payments is establistred.

Rental income

Rental income arising fiom operating leases on inves[nent properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in

revenue.

b. Budget information

Board approved the miginal hutget for FY 2022-2023 on August 2022. Subsequent revisions or additional appropriatisns were made to the

approved budget in accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional appropriafions are added to the original

budget by the entity upon receiving tlrc respective approvals in order to conclude the final budgst. Accordingly, the entity recorded additional

appropriations of4 on the FY 2021-2023 budget following the Board's approval. The entity's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual

incotne and expenditure disclosed in the financial statem€nts. The financial staternents are prepared m accrual basis using a classification based on

the nahue of expenses iu the stdement of financial performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cadr basis. The amou$ts in the frnancial

statem€nti were recast fron the accrual basis to lhe cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget.

l9



Webuy County Hospitol (Bungoma Courtty Goverurent)
Arutual Report und Ftuwnciol Statenen8for The l'eur Endeil 3Oh June 2023

Nolcs to the Fhwncisl Stolenrenls (Continued

A comparison of budget and achral arnounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented in the statement of

comparison of budget and acnral amounts. In addition to the Basis difference, adjustnents to arnounts in the financial statements are also made for

differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of the financial stal€rnents and the approved budget. A statement

to reconcile the acfual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of cornparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per

th€ statement of financial performance has been presented under section Budge Performance of these financial statements.

c.Taxes

Sales tax/ Yalue Added Tax

Expenses and assets are recogpized net ofthe amount ofsales tax, except:

i When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is nd recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case" the sales tax

is recognized as part of the cost dacquisition of the asset oras part ofthe expense itenr, as applicable.

i When receivables and payables are stded with the amount of sales tax included. The net amounl of sales tax recoverable from, or payable

to, the taxatim authority is irrcluded as part of receivables orpayables in the statem€nt of financial position.

d. Investment property

Invesfrnent properties arp measured initially at co*, including uansaction costs. The carrying amount includes the replacernent cost of components

of an existing investment prop€rty at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria arc met and excludes the costs of day+o-day

maintenanc€ of an investnent prop€rty.

Investlnent property acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at ils fair value at the date ofacquisition. Subsequeut to initial

recognition. invesfrnent properties are measured using the cost model and are depreciated over a period of three yeus. Investnent pmperties are

derecopizrd eifter when they have been disposed of or whel the investrnent prop€rty is permanently withdram frour use and no future oconomic

benefit or service potartial is expected from its disposal. The difference befiveen the net diryosal proceeds and the carrying amount of dle asset is

20



lVebq,s Coutrly Hospital (Bungomu County Gov'ernnunt)
Annual Report ond Financiill Stoten en6for The Year Ended 3(fr rtne 2023

rocogtized in the surplus or deficit in the period of d+recognition. Transfers are made to or frorn investment properfy only whan there is a change

ln use.
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W'ebqv Cottttt1, Ilospital (Bangoma Counfs^ Governnunt)
Annucl Report wd Financial Stutencntsfor The l'ear Ended 3Uh June 2023

Notet to the Flnoncial Sroterflenls (Condnued)

e. Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipmurt rue stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and irnpairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the items. When sigrificant parts of propeff, plant and equipment are required to be rep{aced at intervals, the

entify recognizes such parts

as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is perfonned, its cost is

recogrized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacanent if the recopition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and

maintenance costs iue recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transacbon for nil or nomillal

consideration the asset is initiallv measured at its fair value.

f. [.caees

Finance leases are leases that transfer substantially the entire risks and benefits incidental to ownership ofthe leased item to fre Entity. et*.,t n.rd

under a finance lease are capitalized at the cornmencement of the lease at the fair value of tlte leased property or, if lower, at the present vdue of

the furure minimum lease payments. The Entity also recognizes the associated lease liability at the inception of the lease. The liability recognized

is measured as the present value of the future minimum lease payments at initial recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction ofthe lease liability so ss to achieve a

constant rate of interest on the remaining balance oftlre liability. Finance charges are recoErized as finance costs in sr.rplus or deficit.

An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Entity will

obtain ownership of the asset by the end of the lease term, the ass€t is depreciated over the slrorter of the estimated useful life of ttrc asset and the

lease term.

Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership ofthe leased item to the Entity.

Operating lease payrnerrs are recognized as an operating expsnse in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease tenn.

)',



lVebuye Counq^ Hospitol (Buagoma County Governmenl)
Annual Report snd Fhancial Sutenrntsfor The I'ear Ended 30h June 2023

23

g. Intangible esse8

Intangfule assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their

fair value at the date ofthe exchange.

Notes to the Finoncial Stotenents (C-ontinued)

Followrng initial recognition, intangible ass€ts arp carried at cost less ary accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

lnternally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in surplus or

deficit in the period in which fre expa,dirure is incurred. The useful life of ttre intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefrnite.

h, Rcsearch and derclopmeot cocts

The Entity expenses rcsearch costs as incuned. Development @sts on an individual projea are recognized as intangible asssts when the Entity

can dernonstrate:

)'The technical ftasibility of compteting tlte as$cl so that the a$6et will be available for use or srle

i Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the ass€t

>The asset will goraate future economic benefits or service potential

iThe availability of resources to complete dre asset

iThe ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initial reoognitiot of an asset, the asset is carried at co$ les any acormulated amonization and accunntdated impairment losses.

Amortization of the asset begins when development is complete arrd the ass et is available for use. It is amortized over the period of expected

firture benefit, During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment amually with any impairment losses recognized

immediately in surplus or deficit.
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i. Financirlinstrumenh

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Finarrcial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recogrition and Measurement are classified as financial assets at fair value

tkough surplus or deficit. loans and recpivables, held-to-manrrity investrnents

or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The Entity detemines fie classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or daenninable payments that are not quoted in an active rnartet. After

initial rneasurernent, such fi nancial

Notes to lhe Finsncisl Slilterrr,flts (Condnued)

assels are subsequently tneasurcd al anortized cost using the effeuive interest method, less impairment. Amorlized cost is calculated by taking

into account any discount orpremium on acquisition and fees or ctlsts that are an integral part ofthe effective interest rate. Losscs arising fiort

impairment are recognized in the srrplus or deficit.

Held-to-maturity

Nonderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are clasified as held to maturity when the Enti} has

the posilive

intention and ability to hold it to mahrrity. After initial measurernent, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortieed cost using the

effective interest method, less impairmant. Amortiz€d cost is calculated by Aking into account any discounr or premium cn acquisition and fees

or costs ttrat are an integral part ofthe effective interest rate. The losses arising frorn impairment are recogrrized in surplus or deficit

Impairment of financial assetg

The Entity assesses at each reporting dde whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or an entity offinancial assets is impaired. A

financial asset tr an entity of finarrcial assets is deerned to be irnpaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence ofirnpairment as a result of
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one of rnore events that have occurred after dre initial recoguition ofthe asset (an incuned 'loss event') and that loss event has an impact on the

estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the entity of financial ass€ts that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairmant may

include the follorving indicators:

P The debtors or an entity ofdebtors are experiencing significant financial dittculty

i Default or delinquency in interest or principal palrnents

i The probability that deltors will enter bankruptcy or othgr financial reorganization

P Observable data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated future caslr flows (e.g. changes in arrears or economic conditions that

conelate witr defauhs)

25



l*ebuy County llospital (Bungomu County Government)
Annuol Report and Financiol Stotenpnts lor The f'ear Endel 3Ut Jane 2023

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fuir value through surplus or dcficit or loans and

bonowings, as appropriate. The Entity determines the classiflcation of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

htotes to the Financiol Sfultenents (Conltnue$

All financial liabilities are recogaized initially at fair value and, in the case ofloans and bonowings, plus directly auributable transaction costs.

[,oans and borrowing

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effertive interest method.

Gains and losses are recognized in surplus or deficit wlten the liabilities are derecogrized as well as through the effoctive interest merhod

amortization proc€ss.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are zur integral part ofthe
effective interest rate.

i) Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the efient that inventory was received through non-exchange hansactions (for no cost

or for a nominal cost), the cost ofthe inventory is its fair value at the date ofacquisition.

Costs incurred in briuging each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for as follows:

iRaw materials: purchase cost using the weighted aversge cost method

iFinished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour, and a pro,portion of marurfrcturing overlreads bmed on the

nonnal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs
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After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the tower cost and net realizable ralue. However, to the cxl€nt that a class of

inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a nsninal charge, that class ofinventory is measured at the lower cost and the cunent

replacement cost.Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the estirnated costs of completion

and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale- exchange, or distribution, Inventories are recogrrizetl as an expense wheo deployed for

utilization or consunption in the ordinar-v course of operations of the Entity.

j) Provisions

Provisions are recognized whcn the Entiry'' has a presant obligation (legal or consmtctive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow

of resources embodying economic

Noter lo the Finoncial Slstemnts (hntlnaed)

benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of ttr amount of the obligation.

Wherc thc Entity expwts some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbusqnent is recognized

as a $eparate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

The expense relafingto any provision is presented in the staternent of financial performance net of any reimbursement.

Contingent liebilities

The Entity does not recognize a conlingent liability, but discloses details ofany contingencies in the notes to the financial staterneilts, unless the

possibility of an outflow of resoru'ces embodying econornic benefits or service potential is remote.

Contingent assets

The Entity does not rwognize a contingent asset, but discloses details of a possible asse whose existence is contingent on the occunence or non-

oocurelrce of one or more uncertain firture events rrct wholty within the control of the Entity in the nues to the finatrial slalemerts. Contingent

assets are assessed cottinu,ally to ensure that devdopments are appropriately reflected in the financial statemeots. If it has become l'irtu.dly
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certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential will uise and the ass€t's value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related

revenue arerecognized in the financial statements of the period in which the change occurs.

k) Nature and purpose ofreserves

The Entity creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements.

l) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Entity recogrrizes the effects of changes in accounting poliry retrospectively. The effects of changes in accounting poliry are applied

prospectively if reffospective application is impractical.

m) Employee benefits

Retirement bcnelit plans

The Entity provides retirement benefits for its employe€s and directors. Defined contribution plans arr post-employment benefit plans under

which an enfity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity (a fund), and will have no legal or constructive obligation lo pay further

co,ntributions if the fund does not hold sufficient ass+ts to pay all employee benefits relating

Notes to the Financial Stuternents (hntlnued)

to employee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to frrnd obligations for the payment ofretiremert benefits are charged

agains income in the year in which they become payable. D€fined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans otlrer than defined-

contribution plans. The defined benefit fturds are afiarially valued tri-annually on dre projected unit credit method basis. Deficis idmtified are

recovered through lrnnp-sum paym€nts or increased fuhue cootributions on a proportional basis to all paxticipating employers. The contributions

and lump sum payments reduce the post-employment benefit obligation.

n) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in forcigr currencies are initially accounted for at the nrling rate ofexchange on the date ofthe transaction. Trade creditors or

debtors denominated in foreip cr,lrrerrcy are reported at the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on rlut
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date, Exchange diffqences arising fiom the settlernent of crediton, or from the reputing of creditors at rates different frorn tlrose at which they

were initially recorded during the period, are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

o) Borrowing costs

Bonorving coss are capitalized against qualiffing assets as part ofproperty, plant and equipment. Such bonowing costs are capialized over the

period during which the asset is being acquired or constnrcted and bonowings have been incuned- Capitalizatim ceases trhen construction of
the asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the statement of financial performance.

p) Related parties

The Entity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert confiol individually orjointly, or to exercise significant

influence over the Entity, or vice versa. Mernbers of key managenrent :re regarded as related parties and comprise the directors, the

CEOfurincipal and scnior managers.

q) Serrice conceldon rrrangements

The Entity analyses all aspects ofservice concession arrangemenls that it enters into in determining the appropriate accourting freaEnent and

disclosure requiranerts. In particular, rvhere a private party contibutes an asset to the arrangement, the Entity recognizes that asset when and

only when, it cortrols or regulates the services. The operator must provide together

Notes to the Flnanciol Staterrr'nts (Condnued)

with the asset, to whom it must provide them, and at what price. In the case of assets other than'whole-of-life'assets, it controls, through

ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise - any significant residual interest in the asset at the erd of the anangcrnent. Any ass€ls so

recogrrized are measur,ed at their fair volue. To the €xtent that an asset has been recogrrized, tlr Entity also recogrrizes a annesponding liability,

adjused by a castr consideration paid or received.

r) Cash md casb equivalents
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call and higlrly liquid investmenls with an original

maturity of three rnonths or less. which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insigrificant risk of changes in

value. Bank account balances include alnounts held at the Central Banli of Kenya ard at various commercial banks at the ead of the financial

year. For the purposes ofthese financial statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash impres and advances to authorised

public officers and/or institutions which were not surrendered or accourted for at the end ofthe financial year.

s) Comparative figures

\Mrers necessary comp.u'ati!'e figures for the previous financial year have been amended or reconfigued to confonn to the required changes in

presentation.

t) Subcequent events

There have been uo events subsequent to thc financial year end with a significant irnpact on the financial statements for the year ended June 30,

2023

5. Slgnificant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The preparation of the Entity's financial statqnerts in conformity with IPSAS requires management to malce judgrnanls, estimales and

assumprions that affect the reported anounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabr'liues, at the €fld of

the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and esimates could result in outcomes that require a material adustment to

(he carrying amount of the ass€t or liability affected in future periods.

Esti metes and arsu mptiors

The key assumptions conceming ths ftlture and other key sources of estimatiotr uncertainty at the reporhng date. thnt have a significant nisk of

causing a mnlerial adjusfnent to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described belq$r. The

Notes lo the financial Statenpnls (Coainued)
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Entity based its assumptions and estimates on par.rmetors available when the cotsolidated financial statemsnts rvere prepared. However, existing

circumstances and assumptions about fuhre developmofs may churge due to market changes or circnmstances arising beyond the control of the

Entity. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.( IPSAS 1.140)

Useful lives and residurl values

The useful lives and residual values ofassets are assessed using the follorving indicators to inform potential future use and value from disposal:

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional dirlosure of these estirnates of
provisions is included in Note xxx.

Provisims are measrcd at the managernent's best c$imate of the expendihre required to settle the obligatron at the reporting date and are

discornted to present value where the effect is material.

(a) The condition of lhe asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the Eutity
(b) Tle natttre ofthe asset, its stsceptibility and adaptability to changes in technolog;' and processes
(c) The nature ofthe processes in wlrich the asset is deployed
(d) Availability of frmding to replace the asset
(e) Changes in the market in relation to the asset

Provisions

3l
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n'otes to ['inancial Statements Continued

6. In Kind Contributions from The Countv Government

Description 2022t2023 2021122

Salaries and wages

ICshs

29,393,702.00

Kshs

25,1671r2

Phannaceutical and Nm-Pharmaceutical Supplies 562,150.00 2,s3t,4ts
Medical supplies-Drawings Ri gIs 2,463,09s.00 4.253,020

utiliry bills
Total grants in kind 32,418,917 31,951,8,17

Qhese irclude p;yments made dircctly by the County Gowrnments for slafi'salaries and medicol drugs. These shotld he recorded both as income and
expense for campleleness of finarrcial stalements)

32
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Notes to Financial Slatements Continuetl

8. Rendering of Sen'ices-l\{edical Senice lncome

9. Descri n 202U2023 202y22
Ifths IGhs

Phannaceulicals 't.098,822
8,548.868

Non-Plrarm aceuticals 13,216,872
10.239.s4?

Labomtory 12,096,035
10.326,4s1

Radiology 7.832,054
7,815.249

Orthopedic and Trauna Technology 8 t 3.828
I .201 ,306

Tlreatre 2.267,44t
I,730,11 5

Accident and Emergency Service 5,120,161
2,7M,ts6

Ear Nose and Thr@t service

Nutrition service

225,730

106.290

250.170

192,744

Dental services 1.085.960
1,092,370

Paediarics services

Fareu'ell horne services

2.169.833

7.50t,600
6,526,030

252,080
793.800

34
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Physiotherapy 793,165
9M,127

Occupational therapy 45,310
86.600

Eye department 336,410
397,ss7

Records departrnent 2, r 00,81 6
2,3v7,712

Search fee

Special clinics

19,000

413.730

8,000

440,930

Transport/Ambulance 1,364,500
I ,409, 180

( 16.632.814)
t4 .580,497

Other medical services income(nhi fl 145,476,373
94.213.411

(other medlcal serticesfee relates to olkr charges nol listed above)

Total revenuc from lhe rendering of services 193,734,396

8,912,4sO.@

35
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

10. lVliscellaneouslncome

Description 2022t2023 202U22

Kshs Kshs

Insurance recoveries( NHIF )
Income from sale of tender 24,000

Land lease 48,000 72,000

Waste disposal 29,300 2.200

Attachment fee 696,022 598.400

Sale of goods (water, publications, csr(ainers,tent activation
etc) 

,.

4,295 20,1l0

Total other income 777,617 7t6,7lt)

(llB: All incone should be classified asfm as pssible in the rclevad classes and other income shoukl be used to remgnise income nol
elsewherc classified).
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12. Descri

Notes to thc Financial Statemen8 (Continued)

ll. MedicaV Clinical Cmts

Laboratory chemicals and reagents

Food ald Ration

Unifonn, clothing, and linen

Dressing and Non-Phannaceuticals

Phannaceutical suppl ies

Health information stationery

Sanitary and cleursing Materials

Purchase of Medical gases

X-Ray/Radiolory supplies

Other medical related clinical costs(nredical

Total medlcnU clinicrl costs 99,823,366

(Other medical,'clinical rclaled costs referc to oll other costs itvolved irl. narugement oJ'the patients direcily not
orwlyxd ohove.)

2022t2023

Kshs IGhs

14,709"095 t2,649,023

1

2 t,916,5s64l 062 885

3.313.084 2,077,268

39,540.685 32,038,484

24,672.978 19,664.218

3,380_740 2,5s7,6t2

3,6s3.117 2.958.3 r 2

r.773.973

s.947,128

14.765

IJ8,J86,780

37
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13. Employee Costs

lSocial conlribulion tek cs to expenses itvltrred by tfig gnrployer tov'anlr social velfure of Emplol,ezs)

Description 2022t2023 202U22

Ifths IGhs

Salaries, wages, and allorvances
32399,772.00 2s,167.41).

employees dues
186.524.00

Emplol,ee costs
32,,886,296 25,167,112

38

I



ll/ebu1,s County Hospittrl (Bungoma County Government)
Annuul Report und Fifisncial Statenant$ lor The Year Ended 30h June 2023

Notes to the Financid Statements (Continued/

14. Board of lllanagement Erpenses

15. Dcpreciation and Amortization Expense

Total depreciation and
amortizttion

2,391,500

r.383,875

16. Repnirs And Maintenance

Sitting allowanrie 1,816,700.00

Total 1,816,700.00

ProE4y_rplant and equipment r,383,875

Descri on 2022t2023

Kshs
202U22

IGhs

Property- Buildings
t6 t9 603 7,037,444

Medical equipment

Funriture and fittings

39

Descrigdol 2022n023

Kshs
m2u22

K!hs
2,391,500

_ I,078,316 _
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1.668.664

3.980,907 3.342,16

Ir,lotor vehicle expenses
1.812,607 2,703,s07

Ir,Iaintenance of civil rvorks
931,s74 1,251.660

Total repairs and maintenance
22,911,691 17,081,757

40
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Descri on

Notes to the Financial Stalemenb (Continued)

17, General f,xpenses

Advertisin g and publi city expenses

Catering expenses

Insecticides and rodenticides

Contracted services

Eledricity exlrcnses

Travel and accomnrodation allowance

Legal expenses

Courier and postal services

Printing and stationery

Water atd sewerage co6ts

Telephone and mobile phone services

Internet expenses

2022t2023 202U22
Kshs Kshs

40,000 439,400

904.870

795,000

_ ".4-.ggi, 880

7 77t 666

4

9 316 756

13,000,586 9 234,02s

82.000

13.010

3,318,822

4,332.382 t.632,s42

362

693,000 632,000

^11

700,336

38,350
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21,000

Staff rainin g and development

Refined fuel& Otlrer lubricants

Bank charges

Total Generrl Expenses

144.76092t,288

7.832.671 5.505.M9

64,91742,100

45,138,291 .3.1r15,481

42
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Notes to the Financiel Statements (Continued)

18. Medical Senices Contracts Gains /Losses

19. Cmh And Cash Equivalenb

fie amomt should agtee vith the closing and opening ktlances as included in lhe stalement of cash Jtows)

Waivers and Exemptions
16,632.814.00 4,301,128

Total Grin/Loss
16.632,E14 4,301,l2g

Descrlption 702U2023 202U72
Krhg Kshs

C urrent accounts
4,s98,959 8,721,1%

Others(s p e c tfu! Mobile money
233,436 257,076

Total cash and cash cquivtlents
4,932,395 8,978,232

a L

,13

202tm
Krhr

2unnuB . tKrhs
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\otes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

27 a Detailed An of Cash and Cash E uivalen ts

Description 2022t2023 202y22
KshsFinancial institufion IGhs

Korya Commercial bank

a) Current account

lt07l r0793
4,598.959.25 8,721 ,t 56.00

Sub- total
4,598,959.25 8,721,156.00

d) Others(.pecifl
cash in hand

Mobile lnoney- Ir,lpesa. Airtel money
233,436.00 257,076.00

Suh'total
233,436.00 251,076.00

Grand total
4,&32,395.25 8,978,412.00

20. Receivables From Exchange Transactions

Description 2022t2023 202y22
Kshs Kshs

8,912,d50

2.378 870

2,379,970

44
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Medical servic€s receivables

I
Tolal receivables
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Notes to the Flnanciol Stctettvn$ (Confinued)

22. Property, Plantand Equipment

23.
21.

Dtrcrlpllon

Cort

Plrlt sid
medicC

Crpltrl
lrnd BuildlEgr lld Clrll *odir Motor vehil:6

Eurrtu
ne,

,iatintt,

'tlolll<r
equipre

rt

ICT Equipmenl

equipmeDt Work in pmgrcrr

TolDl

Shr Shs Shr Shr Shs Sflr Shr

-t
6,668.440 7{9,800 7,{ lt3"ll)

6,668,.1{a 7{9,80{r 7,.llt,2,t0

6,668.4{0 749.800 1,1tt24)

9J86,130 J5r.i,8(o 660.287 .@ 15,?9lJl?

5,S1r,8{rl 1,. 0,{187 ?3,209,657

Li'/o lt)..o"/. t2.5.h 30.0v. L5'/o I

106,369 554.4&) 423,026 r,383.8?s

666r.'l{ ?lr"xc 1,11t)a

13,8.1r,{ot r,rvr,3, 987.6t I I r,EtJ,7t1

At lJrrlv 20? I

Diqrrsalr

Trarsfcrdudjunttnc U

At 306 Jrnc 2022

At l' Jul! 2022

Addrtiorls

Dstrrsals

TrflLsfer/.qiusureflLr

At 30u Jrlc 2023

Depreclstion !dd
lm

At IJub,202l

Depnxiation for 0rc lcar

Nea book !rhcr

At 30' la 1022

Al lcl' JraG l02l

r\dditions

16,2!.1.770

I



Il/ebuye CouttE Hospital (Bungonw County Government)
Annael Reporl and Financlul Statencntsfor The Yeor Ended 3il' fune 2023

Notes to the Financiel Strtements (Continued)

25. Trade and other Payables

Description 202212023 202u22
Kshs Kshs

Trade payables
965,568 983.854.00

Employee dues
3,492,594

981,854

Total trade and other payables
4,458,162 3,47430E

l1
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BANK RECONCIALITION
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)ou$y Govern
znlsfor The Yt

ment)
'u Ended 3(F June 2023

REPUBUC OF

KENYA

Webuye County Hoqritol (Bulgorra, I
Annual Report urul Finunciol Slutr,rn

HEALTH CARE SERVICES

A/C. NO.1107110793

BANK

RECONOLIATION

As AT 3fth JUNE

2023

St.tion WEBUYE COU t{TY
HOSPITAI

sh Cts sh. Cts 5h Cts

70,722,904.25 25.00Salance as per Eank Certlficate

Less-

Recorded in gank Statement

ments in Cash1.P

{ Unpresented Cheques)... 5,998357,00 (s,9s8,3s7.00)

2,R ln Eank Statement not

in the cashbook

Add -

3, Payr!€|ltg in Bank Statement not

yet recorded in Cash Book ...

4. Recel in Cash Book not yet 231,412,00 234,472,0O

.,,Jrorrr,.aJ

recarded in Ba nk $atemefit

lcerti that I have verified the Bank Ealance

49
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Webul,s County Hospital (Bungonw CouW Governnunt)
Annual Report orul Flnoncful Slotemenlr for Tlrc Year Euted 3(F June 2023

Cash Book wtth the Eank Statement and that th€
above

Reconciliation is correct

Signature Designation Date

I.PAYMENTS IN CASH BOOK NOT YET

RECORDED IN BANK STATEMENT
(UNPRESESNTED CHEQUES)

CHEQUE Date PAYEE AMOUNT

sh Cts

11800 19.5.2023 COMMISSIONER OF INCOME 52,729.00

11801 19.6.2023 30,3{14.00

11815

11823

27.5.2023

27.5,2023

--2-3lrl$.'99-

12,4,00.00

11830 27.6.2023 SAFARICOM PI.C 13898.00

11833 27.5.2023 ESH BUT SUPPTIES 14,437 .OO

11936 27.5.2023 DENIMEO ICs LTD 355,255.00

11837 27.6.2023 ESH BUT SUPPIIES 390,988.00

11a38 27.5.2023 EYAT ROYAT PHARM 824,600.00

11839 27.6.2023 PENTAGON MEOICAT 400,000.00

27 .6.?023 KASOK VENTURES 875,450.00

27.6.2023 ETEMSO ENTERPRISES 98,948.00

27.6.2A23 BUN6OMA QUEENS 360,000.00

27.6.2023 MKASI SIJ PPLIES 417,100.00

11840

11842

1r&43

11850

50
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W'ebrye County Hospitol (Bungonu Counly Government)
Annucl Reporl and Finunchl Slatcnunts r Tfu Year Eruled 3(y' June 2023

11851 121,7s0.0027.6.2023
HIGHRIDGE

PHARMACEUIICAs LTD

10s"300.00MICROBIOLOGY EA LTD27.6.202311852

160,000.0027.6.2023 MICROBIOLOGY EA LTD11853

136,537.00CHEM-I.ABS LTD11854

100,000.0027.6.20t3 CHEM.LABS11855

27.6.2023

25,000.00

82,000.00

27.6.20t1 KAPSOKWONY GEN

IMAGINE POC11857

11858

57,860.00?7.6.2023 LONDIANI EtEgTRICAIS11864

92,600.0027 .6.2023 CHIKHABE BUsINESS

-11t9.9q{g- -._

55.000.00

ANDREW WTXESA

CORPULS MEDICAL

1r873

7ra7 4

27,6,2023

27.6.2023

386,500.0011875 27 .6.202! KEY HEAL CHEMIST

5,9s8,3s7.00SUB.TOTAL

4.RECEIPTS IN CASH BOOX NOTYET RECORDED

IN BANX 5'TATEMEi{T

AMOUNTDETAILS

sh

234,412.00Revenue

t1

5l

27.6.2023

11866

30.05.2023

.1

I
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Webuye Co uttg, Hospita I (B ungonw County Gowrnme nt)
Annual R and Financiul Statementslor The Yeqr Ended 3(P lane 2023

Dent l senic.:B l,()8i.960

Rcpodrctivc hr:alth

2,169.E_13

7,501600Frelrell horue serr,icas

252.080Itlalical erglirution

793,765Physiotheflgr.

4i,310Occupa tiorbl thcfip!'

E5e deparimcnt 336..110

2,100,816

Ito00

Rcco(ds depsftnmt

Sr:rch fee

Spo;ial cLinics 413,710

1,364.500Imn-spor Ambulencc

r 6,612.Er4
Oftefmedic{.I $rica!
iDcont{ \+dircrs & gxcrfiptioG)

158,105.883oher modic.l r.niccs iromdnhif)

Insurinac rocu\,arid(NHlf )

Iruosr &tm dc o[ t:ndcr

Land lc.trsc 48p{D

29.300W6tc disposd

(r96.021Atschmenl l'cc

Sen ices cqrccssirxt inrorre

1295

t1:to9,o95Laboraory clunicalc xnd r€atsntr

hrblk healu actil itics

Food and Ratbl 11,062.&35

Unifom, cbthing, and linor 3-31 3.09t

Drssirg ord Nm-Pluroaceuticals 39J40,685

Phannaceulid supplicr 28n4A5t

Health idbrmrtion strtiolcrv u80,710

Rep.odrctire bEslh trlrerislt

Paymem &
E,pendituras

SEitrl and chatrsing Mrlefals 3653,r l7

54

Pa:iiatrics servicrs

Ssre of Soods (\^tt r, publidbrB.
c.nrsiErs&rt lcliration dc)



Webuye County Hospitol (Bungomo County Government)
Annad Reporl und Finoncial Statementt The l'eor Ended 3(ts lane 2023

Purchare of Mcdicrl gases t73,slJ

X-Ra1'/Radiobgy rupplies 6280,323

Otrer msdirtl rclatcl clinical
.ct{nedicat gascs)

Salaries, n'agcs, arxl allo*aoccs 32.399;772.W

ernptol ees dux 1,524.W

I. 6,700.(n

Poperg' 66161t* l62 t 9.fo3

lv{edical aquipnrnt

Office e.quiEnc.nt

Furnitue ntrl fiuings

C ofi Fdei.s rrxl acacs$rics 3,980,907

lvbtor Yehicle crTcnscs l r l2,rfl7

Msintr,rgnLt of citil rrorl5 el | ,17.r

Advcfiidng rrr, pbticity e\pcn6cr 40JrKl

Crtcritg oxpcn:rc.! ?00.136

WrsL rllno{g[mltlt cxpeoss

Inscc tic idcs srrl rodcllt icid€s

Alrdit fccs

C sDl'crencca {rd dcLEutions

Consultsncr feg

Coutracted s{rt'icil{ 4,E78.(rn

Electriciq c.ipcnxs

Iruumqle

9_116.?56

Research and dcvdopment expcn*s

Tmvd and *qrmmod jqr
db\*"oce 131000.586

Lcaal expcrucs

Licanrcs ad pernits

38.t50

HirB chorlls

Rcd qrpetEet

"1

Sifting allo*mce

CoEicr and p{r8l !.rvtc.
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ll'ebuye Counfi Hospital (Bungoma County Governmcnl)
Annuql R and Fincncial Statenuntsfor The Yeor Ended 3lP lane 2023

Wal€rsld lcrfrsgc c{6ts {J32,t82

Skills dershprns)t ka'i€s

Telepborn ard mobile phorr
semC!':;

lnldrrEt erpens..s 2t.(D0

Stsll'tEining End dcveloFDed 92'1288

Subscriptioas to pof,xsioflrl bodies

Sub6criptio8 !o nc$speers
p€riodicalBaSaziEs, asd gaTrtte
noti.cs

Rel-ncd fud& Olhl,.' lulricafls 7 332.671

Brnli charyca 42.100

Pay.bles

Trale paYobhs ')65.568

Emplol r,r: rlrcs 3,492.5'X

Receivabl€t

l'4ddical scn icg rectirabtes 8,91t.450

Non - Pturmrcuticol suplieg

Payables &
Recekabht Food fl.rppli* 8:5990

Assets Buildong xx

Deprecition Accumulated
Deprection for the year 1383875

262,750,147.75 270,t9L397.L5

7,442,249.40

I

I

56

693,(m

Lftral' boofdMrtcriah

15'tO20"l

1383875
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Annud Report urul Financiul Stutenrcnts for The l'ur Ended 3Oh June 2023

26. Financial Risk Management

The entity's activities e.xpose it to a vriety of financiat risks including credit and liquidity risks and effects of chmges in foreigr cunency. The company's
overall risk managemcflt programme fmtses on the unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to minimise the potential adverse effect
ofsuch risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels ofri*. The company does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to enstre that credit is only
extended to customers with an established credit histcry.
The entity's financial risk managernent objectives and policies are daailed below:
(U Credit risk

The endty has exposurt to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk Erises from cash and cash
equivalents, and deposits with banks, as well as trade rnd other receivables and available-for-sale finrncial inwsfinents. Management assosses the credit qu6lity
of each customer, taking into account its frnancial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits {r€ set bas€d on internal or s(temal
asses$nent in accordatrce with limits s{ by the directors. The amounts presented in the statem€nt of financial position are nd of allowances for doubtfirl
receivables, estimated by the company's management based on prior experience and their assessmenl of the current economic environment. The carrying
iunount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the eirrity's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking accoqnt ofthe value of
any collateral obtained.
Notes io the Financial Statements (Continued)

The ctrstomers under the fully perfonning category are paying their ffits as they continue trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal
and the allowance for uncollectible unounts that the company has recognised in the financial staternents is considered adaluate to cover any potentially
irrecoverable amounts. The entity has sigrificant concsrtration ofcredit risk on amounts due, The board of management sets the company's credit policies and
objectives and lays do*n parameters within which the various aspects ofcredit risk tnanagernent are operated.

?tJ
)/

lVebuy Counly Hospital @ungoma County Governnent)

Notes ao the Financial Statements (Continued)

(ii) Liquiditl risk monagemcnt

man88eInentrestswiththehospital'sboardofmanagementwhohavebuiltanappropiateliquidit.vri*mamganerrt
framervork for the management of the entity's short, nredium and long-lerm ftmding and liquidiry" managemetrt requir€ments. The entity manages liquidiqv risk
through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows.
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Webuyv Counly Hospital (Bungorur Coanty Governnunt)
Annuul Report orul Firuncial Slalenzn$for The Yut Ended 3Oh June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

(iii) Ilarket risk

The hospital has put in place an intemal audit firnction to assist it in assessing the risk faced by the entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the desigrr and

effectiveness of its intemal accounting and operational controls- Marka risk is the risk arising fiom changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices

and foreign exchange rates which will affect the entity's income or the value of its holding of financial instrumeils. The objective of market risk rnanagnment is

to manage and c.ontrol market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optirnising the retum. Overall responsibility for managing market risk rests

with the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The company's Finance Departrnent is responsible for the development of detailed risk rnanagement policies (subjea to review and approval by Audit and Risk
Managernart Committee) and for the day+o-day implernentation of those policies. There has boen no change to the urtity's exposure to market risks or the way
it manages and measures the risk.

a) Foreign currency risk

The entity has trarsactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases ofgoods and services thal are done in currencies other tban the local

curency. Invoices denominated in foreigr currencies are paid after 30 days frun the date of the invoice and conversion at the time of payment is done using dre

prevailing exchauge rate.

Foreip currency sensitivity analysis

The {ollowing table dentonstrates the effect on the company's slatement of financial performance on applying nthe sensitivity for a reasonable possible

change in the exchange rate ofthe three main fansaction currencies, with all other variables held constant, The'reverse would also occur ifthe Kenya Shilling

appreciated with all other variables held constant.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate nsk is the risk that the entity's financial condition may be advenely affbcted as a result ofchanges in interest rate levels. The company's inlerest

rate risk arises from bank deposits. This exposes the company to ca$ flow interest rate risk The interest rate risk exposur€ arises mainly from htersst rate

movements on the company's deposits.

Management of intercst rate risk

58



ll'?hu1,g County Hospital (Bungoma Couwyn Government)
Annuul Reporl ond Financial Slutenents for The Year Ended 3th June 2023
To managt the interest rate risk, nranagernent has end€avoured to bank with inshtutisu lhat offer favourable interest rates.

Sensitivity anrlysis

The entity analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynarnic basis by conducting a sensitivity analysis. This involves determining the impact on profit or loss of
defined rate shifts. The sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk assumes that all other variables, in partiorlar foreign exchange rates, ronain coflstanl. The
analysis has been performed on the sanre basis as the prior yeu.

iv) Capital Risk Manrgement
The objective ofthe entity's capital risk rnanagement is to safeguard ttre Hospital's ability to continue as a going concern

?1r
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